Borough of Coraopolis
Allegheny County, Pennsylvania
Regular Council Meeting via teleconference
November 13, 2024
6:30 PM

The Regular Meeting of the Borough of Coraopolis was called to order by Council President, Robb Cardimen.
Police Chief Stewart led the gathering in the Pledge to the Flag.
A Roll Call of Members was then taken.

Present

Robb Cardimen

Rudy Bolea

George Mihalyi
Allison Marine

Gary Flasco

Kim Haskins

Mike Harris

Joe Szabat

Michael Dixon, Mayor

Mr. Cardimen said | will turn the meeting over to Mayor Dixon for the swearing in of Officer Jonathon Bradford.
Mayor Dixon conducted the swearing in of Officer Jonathon Bradford as a Coraopolis Police Officer.

Mr. Cardimen said are there any questions on the agenda from Borough Council? Mr. Cardimen said are there any
visitor requests and comments regarding agenda items? Being none, the meeting continued.

Mr. Bolea made a motion to approve the Minutes of the October 9, 2024 Regular Council Meeting. Ms. Haskins
seconded the motion.
Motion passed by Unanimous Voice Vote.

Ms. Haskins made a motion to approve minutes of the November 6, 2024 Council Workshop Meeting. Mr. Bolea
seconded the motion.
Motion passed by Unanimous Voice Vote.

Mr. Szabat made a motion to approve the Invoices for November 2024 in the amount of $190,269.92. Mr. Bolea
seconded the motion.

“Upon Roll Call Vote

Robb Cardimen Yes
Rudy Bolea Yes
George Mihalyi Yes
Allison Marine Yes
Gary Flasco Yes
Kim Haskins Yes

1



Mike Harris Yes
Joe Szabat Yes
Motion carried.

Mr. Harris made a motion to approve the Payroll for the month of October 2024 in the amount of $144,362.16. Mr.
Szabat seconded the motion.

Upon Roll Call Vote

Robb Cardimen Yes
Rudy Bolea Yes
George Mihalyi "~ Yes
Allison Marine Yes
Gary Flasco Yes
Kim Haskins Yes
Mike Harris Yes
Joe Szabat Yes

Motion carried.

Ms. Haskins made a motion to approve Resolution 24-435to apply for a 2024 CFA Local Share Account (LSA) for Watson
Street Roadway Improvements Project requesting $300,426.00 in funding. Mr. Harris seconded the motion.
Motion passed by Unanimous Voice Vote.

Mr. Bolea made a motion to approve Partial Payment No. 1 in the amount of $109,543.50 to Avelli Construction
Company for the Montour Street Roadway Improvement Project. Mr. Szabat seconded the motion.

Upon Roll Call Vote

Robb Cardimen Yes
Rudy Bolea Yes
George Mihalyi Yes
Allison Marine Yes
Gary Flasco Yes
Kim Haskins Yes
Mike Harris Yes
Joe Szabat Yes

Motion carried.

Ms. Haskins made a motion to approve an agreement with the Cornell School District to supply a Borough Police Officer
through July 31, 2027 with the School District reimbursing the Borough up to 75% of the Officer’s wages and benefits for
duties performed as the School Resource Officer. Mr. Harris seconded the motion.

Upon Roll Call Vote

Robb Cardimen Yes
Rudy Bolea Yes
George Mihalyi Yes
Allison Marine Yes
Gary Flasco Yes
Kim Haskins Yes

2



Mike Harris Yes
Joe Szabat Yes
Motion carried.

Ms. Haskins made a motion to approve the use of the Town Square on December 7, 2024, for a Cory Bright Ornament
Trail and Hot Chocolate Station from 3 pm to 9 pm for the CCDC. Mr. Mihalyi seconded the motion.
Motion passed by Unanimous Voice Vote.

Solicitor's Report

Mr. Richard Start said | have nothing to report this evening.

Police Chief’s Report

Chief Stewart gave the Police Department Report for the month of October 2024.

Fire Chief's Report

Chief Spencer said in September 2024 the Coraopolis Volunteer Fire Department answered 24 calls; 10 mutual aid calls,
3 fires, 4 gas odor calls, 1 Co call, 4 elevator entrapments, 1 motor vehicle accident and 1 false alarm. For a total of
296.83 hours. ‘

Mr. Spencer said | would like to thank a few people for their help during the brush fire that we had over Halloween; |
want to thank Chief Stewart and the Police Officers for helping us with the traffic situation and anything we needed, the
CWSA for turning on another pump because so much water was being used, and the Mutual Aid Departments that came
to help and answer calls in Coraopolis while we were tied up with the brush fire and he continued to explain.

Engineer’s Report

Mr. Drew Null directed everyone to the monthly report and said Riverfront Park; there was a minor complaint related to
some landscaping and the Contractor advised they will be out this week to address these items.

Mr. Drew Null said Montour Street Roadway Improvements; the sidewalks are mostly poured and the roadway is being
prepped and they planned to have the road updated in the next two weeks.

Mr. Drew Null said Grant Applications; you authorized the Resolution this evening for the Watson Street Project and that
is replacement between Hiland and Fawcett Street. This is a no match grant and is due at the end of the month.

Ms. Haskins said what does the Mill Street Roadway Improvement consist of?

Mr. Null said that is road, sidewalk and waterline in coordination with the Authority between 4% and 5" Avenues, a new
stormsewer and basically a new streetscape. We had a meeting with some of the Borough Staff within the past month
and have a concept plan developed to be circulated to Council shortly.



Mr. Cardimen said to add to this, we have secured close to $750,000.00 in grant funding for this project and a discussion
pursued,

Mayor’s Report

Mayor Dixon asked for a round of applause for the Coraopolis Volunteer Fire Department and thanked Chief Spencer
and Chief Stewart for all of their hard work over the past month.

Mayor Dixon listed highlights and accomplishments among the leaders of Coraopolis, most notably those who attended
the Touch a Truck Event with me last month. They are Chief Spencer, his wife Teresa, as well as the Coraopolis Fire
Department, the Coraopolis Police Department and Valley Ambulance.

Mayor Dixon said the Fall Festival and the ribbon cutting of Riverfront Park went well and | want to thank Randon
Willard and members of Council for taking that on. | want to thank the CCDC for always lending their gifts to the citizens
of our Borough. ‘

Mayor Dixon said | want to recognize Councilwoman Kim Haskins for bringing a national spotlight to the Borough of
Coracopolis and he continued to explain.

Mayor Dixon said | want to thank Borough Manager Ray McCutcheon for his contributions concerning Grants, the Mill
Street Project, Riverfront Park, the Ridge Avenue Tot Lot, the Neely Heights Roadway and Utility Improvements. All of
these accomplishments are largely due to Mr. McCutcheon and he continued to explain.

Mayor Dixon said on September 24", | submitted a grant application to the Allegheny County Clean Air Fund requesting
almost $1M for climate resiliency and he continued to explain.

Mayor Dixon said there are so many good things going on between me, the new Chief and the Police Department.
Mayor Dixon said throughout all of this, unfortunately, my health has been [inaudible 19:01] and in early October |
voluntarily attended a mental health rehabilitation facility and he continued to explain. Mayor Dixon said | am
announcing today that | will commit to forming a new 501 non-profit that | will call the Equipment Center for Mental
Health and he continued to explain. ‘
Mayor Dixon said with all of what | said, | want to take this opportunity to share with you that | intend to run for another
term as the Mayor of Coraopolis next year.

Committee Reports/Comments from Council

Mr. Flasco said | have nothing to report this evening.

Mr. Mihalyi said | have nothing this evening.

Mr. Bolea said | have nothing to report this evening.

Ms. Marine said | want to thank the Community, Shade Tree Commission, school groups from Cornell and Council for
their support on the cleanup day that was held on Saturday, October 12" and she continued to explain.

Ms. Marine said thank you to the Public Works Department for their dedicated efforts with leaf pick up.

4



Ms. Marine said thank you to our Police and Fire Departments for making Trick or Treating a fun and safe event despite
all the dedication to the brush fires. '

Ms. Marine said on the heels of the exciting news about receiving a new K-9 Officer | want to thank Chief Stewart and
Officer Quinn who sat down with me to put together an informative article for the public on our longstanding K-9
Program and she continued to explain. Ms. Marine said | want to remind everyone that with the upcoming holiday
season of charitable giving, the Coraopolis K-9 Fund is always accepting donations.

Ms. Haskins said | have nothing this evening.

Mr. Szabat said regarding the library, the sagging ceiling has been supported, raised and leveled. The room has been
painted and an office will be built there for the Library Director. We are waiting for a plumber and then carpeting so
that the books can be moved back in and get it ready to go.

Mr. Harris said I'd like to extend my welcome to Officer Bradford to the Coraopolis Police Department. | also want to
piggyback on the Mayor’s and Councilperson Marine’s commends on our first responders’ success and he continued to
explain.

Mr. Cardimen said the parking lines have been painted to assist motorists in the Central Business District.

Mr. Cardimen said | want to thank this Council on behalf of the Fire Department and the Police Department for your
continued support with the acquisition of our side by side and drones and he continued to explain.

Mr. Cardimen said last Wednesday the CVFD was called to the 1400 block of Ridge Avenue where a little boy was struck
by a motorist. The little boy was taken to the hospital, but not seriously injured. His mother wrote me a letter and
asking for more safety measures and asked me to read it to Council during our meeting and he continued to explain.

Mr. Cardimen said | assured her we have been looking into items to mitigate speed in this area and proposed the
purchase of a pair of custom, LED solar signs saying Watch Children, Slow and post a 15mph to be placed in the center of
the block (where the concentration of the children are) at a cost not to exceed $3,000.00.

Ms. Marine made a motion to approve the purchase of a pair of custom, LED solar signs saying Watch Children, Slow to
be placed in the 1400 Block of Ridge Avenue at a cost not to exceed $3,500.00. Mr. Harris seconded the motion.

Mr. Harris said there are so many neighborhoods throughout town with the same problem and we cannot put speed
bumps and signs on every single block. Maybe we can look at additional guidelines, population of children, to provide
additional safety throughout the Borough.

Ms. Haskins said | agree with this and brought it to Council’s attention regarding 1°* Avenue. | want to be proactive and
not wait until a child almost gets hit. | appreciate the signs that have been installed, but nothing has changed. [ feel that
the parents on 1°* Avenue are just as concerned as the parents on Ridge Avenue and she continued to explain.

Mr. Cardimen said | will amend the motion to include two more signs and it will be Council’s pleasure to vote in favor of
that or not and a discussion pursued.

Mr. Cardimen said | would like to amend my motion to include four signs of this nature at a cost not to exceed
$7,000.00. ‘



Upon Roll Call Vote

Robb Cardimen Yes
Rudy Bolea No
George Mihalyi Yes
Allison Marine Yes
Gary Flasco Yes
Kim Haskins Yes
Mike Harris Yes
Joe Szabat Yes

Motion carried 7 yea votes to 1 nay vote.

Borough Manager’s Report

Mr. McCutcheon said | have nothing this evening.

Comments from the Public

Mr. Cardimen said visitor requests and comments regarding general matters; please limit your comments to three
minutes, state your name and your address.

Mr. George Karr of 103 Chestnut Street said | brought up the cars with expired inspection and emission stickers. In my
walking through the Borough, | have seen no less than twenty cars that have expired inspection and emission stickers
and he continued to explain.

Chief Stewart said why don’t you call us when you see this instead of coming to us and telling us now?

Mr. Karr said | spoke with the Borough Secretary.

Chief Stewart said why didn’t you call us? And a discussion pursued.

Ms. Diaha Angelo of 2412 State Avenue said | addressed several months ago we should get a study of people not being
able to turn with the red light off the bridge because a tractor trailer almost hit me yesterday, they just don’t stop. |
want to know if PennDOT was contacted.

Mr. Cardimen said | did not have a chance to speak with the State Representative, Anita Kulik. State Rt. 51 is a state
road and the Neville Island Bridge is a county roadway and the Municipality is responsible for Ferree Street. | would like
to get the three groups together to see if PennDOT or the County could merit the study for that and he continued to
explain.

Mr. Bolea said with your conversation with Anita Kulik maybe you can stress the need for a No Turn on Red sign and a
discussion pursued.

Ms. Mary Strassner said I'd like to get clarification; | am the grandmother of [inaudible 51:01] Hineman and | need to
understand that if the signs that are approved are permanent or rotating signs?

Mr. Cardimen said the signs that | proposed for that area along with two more for another area in town will be
permanently mounted and he continued to explain.

Ms. Strassner said is there a reason that speed bumps aren’t being discussed?



Mr. Cardimen said the engineer has pulled some information and we are looking into that, however all of the asphalt
plants have closed for the season. If we were to approve speed bumps tonight, we couldn’t install them until May,
when the asphalt plants start opening up again.

Mr. Brian Diggins of 1012 5% Avenue said Mayor Dixon | think your comments are very brave and happy to hear that you
are running for mayor again, we will be proud supporters if you need anything from us.

Mr. Diggins thanked Ms. Haskins for asking about Mill Street and said he was curious about the design of it.

Mr. Diggins said | am wondering if any of the property/business owners are going to be looped in to the conversations as
to what might be happening and he continued to explain.

Ms. Marine said as a Councilmember | will say that what Drew shared tonight is as much as we know at this point in
time, but | would think that not just business/property owners, but that this project will impact a lot of different stake
holders as the public, lease holders, nonprofit organizations and she continued to explain.

Mr. Diggins said it seems like there would be some public discussion, is that going to happen?

Mr. Bolea said at this point not any of us on Council has any idea of what is going to happen with Mill Street. It is in the
hands of the engineer to come up with a couple of different ideas. As soon as they do, I'm sure we’re going to bring the
publicinto it and he continued to explain.

Mr. Pat Walsh the owner of Snappy’s Tap House at 415 Mill Street said | too, am interested in supporting whatever the
engineering and Council desires to do on Mill Street.

Mr. Walsh said there are a number of businesses on Mill Street that are vacant. We’ve been there for three years and |
haven’t seen any changes in those businesses. Some have building permits, but no building construction has occurred so
I' would like to request the Council to investigate three properties for compliance with Borough Ordinance; 406 Mill
Street, 404 Mill Street and 420 Mill Street. | don’t think these businesses are in compliance with current ordinance
codes.

Mr. Mihalyi made a motion to Adjourn. Ms. Haskins seconded the motion.
Motion passed by Unanimous Voice Vote.

MEETING ADJOURNED



